
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE: Friday 12th February, 2021

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: REMOTE

DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
PANEL

Councillor Lappin
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Lynne Thompson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent
Consultation, Engagement and 
Performance Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 3840
Fax:
E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1.  Welcome and apologies

 2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3.  Minutes of meeting held on Friday 15th 
January 2021

(Pages 5 - 
16)

 4.  Matters Arising

 5.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Community 
Adult Substance Use Treatment and 
Recovery Service

(Pages 17 - 
40)

 6.  Any Other Business

 7.  Date of next meeting - Friday 12th March 
2021, 10.00 a.m.   Venue to be confirmed - 
either Bootle Town Hall with video 



conference in Southport Town Hall or 
Remote



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

 

Meeting held on Friday 15th January 2021 
Remote Meeting 

 
 
Present:  
  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Byrom (CBE) 
Councillor Mhairi Doyle (MBE) 
Councillor Lynne Thompson 
Nigel Bellamy – VCF Sector Representative 
Dr Mike Homfray – VCF Sector & Equalities Representative 
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead, Sefton MBC 
Michelle Anglesea – Strategic Support, Sefton MBC 
Lee Davies - Principal Officer Transport Policy & Sustainable Travel, Sefton  
MBC 
Ali Dore - Sustrans 
Maria Simpson – Policy and Development Officer – Sefton MBC 
Jackie Moran – Director of Integration and Transformation, West Lancashire Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
Anna Collins – Cheshire & Merseyside Health and Care Partnership 
Joanne Edgar – Admin Support, Sefton MBC 
 
Apologies: 
Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South Sefton and Southport 
& Formby CCGs 
Joel Thornton – Sefton CVS, Sefton Young Advisors 
 
The reports presented to the Public Consultation and Engagement Panel can be 
found here: 
 
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10033&Ver=4 
 

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies:  

Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South 
Sefton and Southport & Formby CCGs. 
 

 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

The following was declared: 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10033&Ver=4
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10033&Ver=4


 

2 
 

 

 

Action 

• Item 11 on Agenda moved to Item 8 - Councillor Doyle is 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Adult Social Care 
& Health   

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th November 2020 are a 
true and proper record. 

 

4. Matters Arising 

No matters arising were raised. 

 

 

5. Public Engagement and Consultation Panel Annual Report 
2020 

Jayne Vincent presented to the Panel the Public Engagement and 
Consultation Panel’s 2019 Annual Report.   

Councillor Lappin congratulated Jayne on the report in what has 
been an exceedingly difficult year. 

Jayne said that the Panel has been running for twelve years. 
Despite last year’s challenges they were still able to meet with five 
meetings (noted there was no meeting in May or July) – three held 
remotely.  Jayne said that for the Panel it had been very much 
business as usual with lots of items to discuss.   

2020 Report Summary 

During 2020 they have appraised the following: 

• 26 proposals for consultation  

• 4 Feedback and Evaluation Reports  

• 2 update reports 

Noted that some consultations have been started and delayed due 
to Covid and the challenges.  In addition, there has been a need to 
modify the engagement methods for some and a delay to some 
Feedback & Evaluation reports due to staff redeployment as a 
result of Covid – it is intended that these will be brought back to the 
Panel this year. 

 
Your Sefton Your Say Consultation Hub 

• During 2020 there have been 31 consultations - half ‘private’  
or ‘targeted’, half public and nearly 5000 responses.   
Jayne commented that Council staff have been using the 
platform to engage with their staff (‘private/targeted’ 
consultations), which is positive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

3 
 

 

 

Action 

• The provider of the system (Delib Ltd) have offered Sefton 
the opportunity to attend training webinars and colleagues 
have attended ones on Accessible Consultations and  
Surveys and Good Survey Design. Next week Delib Ltd will 
be providing training to ten officers on Analysis Training 
(postponed from last year). 

Jayne highlighted that she has also attended other training 
webinars hosted by Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE), 
Delib Ltd and The Consultation Institute.  The report outlines the 
key messages from these sessions, including the need to offer 
technical support, to consider providing equipment to assist people 
to take part and that technology should not be used as the be all 
and end all.  Consideration should be given to using the voluntary 
sector and advocates to run sessions to seek views from people 
who cannot or will not go online. 

Jayne said the feedback from service users is that they want to use 
Zoom.  Currently the Council are not able to run meetings via Zoom 
and rely on the voluntary sector to set up the meetings. Michelle 
Anglesea responded that it is now possible to set up meetings via 
Zoom – this has been approved by the ICT Client Unit.  Maria 
Simpson said she wanted to get involved in a meeting re. setting 
up Zoom and Lee Davies also said she wanted to participate – 
Michelle Anglesea to arrange a session. 

Jayne mentioned a Consultation and Law webinar she had 
attended which highlighted that the Gunning Principles (outlined in 
the report) are still very relevant, are still being used this year and 
these Principles need to be applied with regards to consultations.  
Jayne said that she will feedback from the final webinar she is 
attending this month hosted by The Consultation Institute. 
 
Jayne recommended to the Panel that a session should be held to 
discuss whether Public Engagement and Consultation Framework 
and consultation standards are still relevant or if there are gaps.  
Councillor Lappin said that it was a great idea to review the 
framework and requested a virtual session be scheduled.  Jayne 
Vincent to arrange a session to review standards and membership. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Michelle 
Anglesea 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

4 
 

 

 

Action 

6. Update Report – SEND Youth Voice 

Maria Simpson presented a report outlining how they have been 
working with children and young people with SEND over the last 
year and how their voice has impacted on information provision and 
service delivery. 

Engagement has included: 

• November 2019 - Children and Young People’s consultation 
took place which informed development of the Children & 
Young Peoples Plan 

• 2 Annual Youth conferences – for primary schools in March 
2020 and a virtual conference for secondary in June 2020 

• A number of findings came from the conferences, including: 
o Young people wanted more regular contact with each 

other so weekly talking meeting for secondary SEND 
young people were set up, schools designed posters 
(Schools Get Talking) to encourage more people to 
engage and lots of meetings were held to get the 
Local Offer refreshed -  Emma Lambert from Buddy 
Up has worked closely with them on this to set up 
Zoom meetings. 

o Young people were very interested in transition – 
transitioning to college.  Colleges went online and did 
video talks to pupils and staff.  Young people said 
they wanted a transitions guide and this was 
developed working closely with young people and 
their parents.  A Transitions Conference is to be held 
on 24th February 2021 via Zoom with Emma from 
Buddy Up. 

o The Young People said they wanted Aiming High 
short breaks service to be more reflective of the views 
of young people (rather than their parents) and this is 
being reviewed. 
 

Mike Homfray asked whether this is an ongoing consultation?  
Maria responded that the conferences are an annual event, 
normally at Crosby Lakeside Adventure Centre but are now online.  
There is also a National Youth Conference in February 2021 with 
two of Sefton’s young people to attend.   
 
Maria discussed the Young Inspectors Programme. Emma Lambert 
has attended the train the trainers Young Inspectors programme 
and can use the training materials to train young people in Sefton 
to become Young Inspectors to inspect local services and improve 
youth participation across Sefton. Two young people from Buddy 
Up have been accepted on the Young Inspectors programme.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

5 
 

 

 

Action 

When their training has been completed they have been asked to 
review the Schools Get Talking meeting. 
 
Mike Homfray asked whether the current restricted mode of 
consultation has resulted in any gaps?  Perhaps there is a need to 
think about areas which they did not find out about successfully last 
year? Mike felt that some young people will take well to online 
others will not. 
 
Nigel Bellamy felt that the Young Inspectors Programme is an 
exciting development and that it is very positive that two young 
people are on the training.  He said that they should work on getting 
this part of a system approach.  As children get older it is important 
their voices are heard, and they need to work on getting a balance 
back – to include young people’s views rather than focusing on 
those of their parents.  
 
Maria Simpson commented that going online some young people 
are engaged more and they have noticed a greater reach.   
Mike Homfray responded that his background is working in higher 
education and from this has seen that the majority of young people 
cope well with IT but a minority find it difficult. 
 
Jayne Vincent said that the SEND report had gone to the SEND co-
production Communication and Engagement Sub Group and  
SEND Continuing Improvement Board with recommendations 
outlined for all partners.  They want to remind the Sub Group of the 
Young Advisors participation toolkit devised a few years ago (which 
had been shared with the Panel) and will be asking the Subgroup 
in January to consider using it as a tool to assess where we are as 
a subgroup in terms of youth participation and a youth voice. 
 
Councillor Lappin thanked Maria for her report and said she thought 
it was informative and quite inspirational. 

 

 

Maria Simpson 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Update Report – Improving Information Group 

 
Michelle Anglesea and Jayne Vincent delivered a presentation to 
the Panel on the Improving Information Group.  
 
The group was set up in 2017 and consists of people who live in 
Sefton and communicate in different ways.  In 2019 they decided 
they needed more help and asked Council staff to become 
Accessible Information Advocates – to gain skills and promote the 
accessible information.  They now have 18 advocates from different 
areas of the Council.  
 
Michelle Anglesea and Jayne Vincent have co-produced 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

6 
 

 

 

Action 

Accessible Information eLearning which is now available.  Council 
employees can access Accessible Information resources including 
the eLearning course via the Intranet and this information is also 
available on the Resources Hub on the external Me Learning site 
to enable accessibility for non-Council staff.   

Jayne Vincent said that Dwayne Johnson, Sefton Council’s Chief 
Executive is one of the advocates and it is important that he is there 
to spearhead the messages through the organisation. Jayne said 
that they are starting to see changes, that the work is paying off 
through what is coming through to the Panel and they are getting 
more people and departments involved.  Jayne gave examples of 
what has been produced, including Easy Read documents for 
Gambling Policy and Property Pool Plus Review and changing 
strategies to Easy Read and audio.  This year they have a lot of 
plans and are including a message in the training asking for more 
advocates.  They want to get as many people as possible to do the 
training across the Public Sector.  In addition, they are looking at 
getting an accredited scheme, getting it quality checked by users 
and try and see if we can get recognition for collaboration. 

Michelle said she had come to the Panel with two requests: 

1. That people who come to the Panel be told about the 
Improving Information group and encourage their staff to 
take part in the training as they want the Council to be there 
for everyone 

2. To ask those who come to the Panel whether they have had 
any positive or negative feedback about how information has 
been put across.  Making every document plain English 
would be a good start – accessibility should be the first 
consideration. 

Councillor Lappin said that Elected Members should have an 
understanding of this area and requested that Michelle/Jayne 
speak to Ruth Appleby regarding setting up a training/briefing 
session.  Councillor Doyle agreed and said that Elected Members 
need a briefing about this.  Jayne Vincent highlighted that the 
eLearning is suitable for elected members and that they can do this 
in their own time.  

Councillor Lappin said that it was an excellent presentation and 
thanked Michelle and Jayne. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Michelle 
Anglesea/ 

Jayne Vincent 

8. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement Activity – 
Shaping Care Together (moved from Item 11)  

Jackie Moran, Director of Integration and Transformation West 
Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) presented the 
proposal for engagement activity with regards to the Shaping Care 
Together Programme.  Her colleague, Anna Collins was also in 

 

 

 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

7 
 

 

 

Action 

attendance.  Jackie said that she had come to the Panel to ask for 
advice and help - in her role as the Senior Responsible Officer 
(SRO) for communications and engagement, she wants to engage 
with residents and hear their voices.  

The Shaping Care Together programme is led by a partnership of 
NHS organisations (Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust, 
NHS Southport and Formby CCG and NHS West Lancashire CCG) 
who have come together to help shape how hospital services could 
be delivered in the future to ensure local people continue to receive 
safe, sustainable and high-quality care. 

The services within the Shaping Care Together Programme are: 

• Frailty 

• Urgent & Emergency Care (adults) 

• Paediatrics (including Urgent and Emergency Care) 

• Maternity and Neonatal services 

• Gynaecology and Sexual Health services 

A programme of engagement has commenced which will take place 
over several months – noted this is a listening exercise rather than 
a formal consultation.   

Jackie said that she took on board the point raised regarding the 
requirement for accessible language and said this is an area they 
need help on.  They will  be engaging with Sefton CVS and 
Healthwatch and have set up a helpline for those who are digitally 
excluded.  Jackie said that they do not know all the groups to reach 
and asked the Panel to point them in the right direction.   

Councillor Doyle stated that she is Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Adult Social Care and Health.  She asked how 
will Covid affect the consultation and how will they mitigate this?  In 
addition, how will people without the internet know about this?  
Councillor Doyle said that you can phone people but if the call is 
from a withheld number, potentially the elderly will not answer.  In 
addition, Councillor Doyle thought it would be difficult to do a 
consultation at this time when people are fearful and due to NHS 
pressures.   

Jackie responded that they want to hear voices of residents.  If they 
are not hearing the right people, they have to extend their work. The 
telephone calls will not be from a withheld number – will be 01695 
and will go to an ansaphone and an actual person will call back.  
Hard copies of the information will be provided on request.  Posters 
are being produced to be put up in supermarkets.   

Anna Collins detailed the engagement at vaccination centres, with 
pop up banners and handouts (one key question being asked, 
which can be completed and returned in the post).  Anna said they 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

8 
 

 

 

Action 

are trying to think of all the ways to engage with people who are 
difficult to reach.  They are using social media to raise awareness 
– encouraging young people to get their families involved and 
suggested filming a video to upload to the website. 

Wendy Anderson from Healthwatch Sefton said that Diane Blair, 
Manager of Healthwatch Sefton had updated the team about the 
work and she was very reassured by this. Wendy highlighted that 
Healthwatch have a large membership and a Community 
Champions  Network who meet monthly via Zoom and would be 
keen to get involved if they are looking for feedback. 

Jayne Vincent mentioned that one of the webinars she attended 
suggesting holding household focus groups. 

Mike Homfray raised a concern regarding services which have 
been provided remotely (which were previously face-to-face) - 
people who do not want to access them will not use them. 
Therefore, potentially the people you are consulting with have used 
the services and may be happy with them, but you do not know the 
views of the people who have not used them. 

Jayne Vincent raised two points.  Firstly, that during a call with 
Jackie and Anna they had outlined that the programme is a 5-stage 
process and this is the listening phase. Secondly that a very 
comprehensive Equality Impact Assessment has been produced, 
showing the different methods of engagement around the services 
in scope. 

Jackie agreed with Mike over his concerns.  She said that they are 
hoping to get the feelings of everyone (good or bad) on whether 
they have used the services or not.  Anna said they have paid a lot 
of attention to people who find it hard to engage.  For her the 
hardest group to reach are the ‘working well’ group (i.e. those 
furloughed or doing home schooling) who cannot be bothered, and 
they need to consider what they can do for them. During the first 
lockdown it was proven that engagement online worked best. 

Michelle Anglesea said that the majority of people in Sefton use 
accessible information as their first port of call and the average 
reading age is seven years old, therefore we need to pitch the 
communication at their level. 

Jackie said that she wanted to stress no decisions have been made 
at this point.  They want to engage – listen to people’s views to 
inform and help to shape things. 

Councillor Lappin thanked Jackie for the report and asked her to 
return to feedback to the Panel. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jackie Moran 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 

9 
 

 

 

Action 

9. Feedback and Evaluation Report – Southport Liveable 
Neighbourhoods (moved from Item 8) 

Lee Davies provided feedback on the Southport Liveable 
Neighbourhoods engagement. Lee detailed the background to the 
scheme and Ali Dore (from Sustrans, a walking and cycling charity 
who are delivering the project) described the project, phases and 
progress to date.  

The project was launched during lockdown in November 2020  with 
progress to date as follows: 

• Scoping and data gathering and stakeholder mapping 
(completed) 

• Co-discovery - Work is currently ongoing, co-discovering 
streets and places with the people who live work and visit 
the area. 

• The following phases are due to start in early 2021 (early 
February/beginning March): Co-development, Co-design, 
Trial, Test and Celebrate. 

Engagement activity has included: 

• Launch of an online engagement hub 
www.sustrans.org.uk/SouthportLN 

• 5 online (Zoom) Co-Discover workshops – 3 for community 
members, 2 aimed at local businesses 

• 1 online workshop delivered to Sefton’s Older People’s 
Forum 

• Leaflets to businesses and an online business survey 
(extended till February 21st 2021) 

• 150 posters have been put up around the project area 
which contain the QR code for the engagement hub. 

• Co-discovery stage will include mailing out both to 
businesses and households.  

• Phone calls to hard to reach groups    

Ali said that they have been analysing data from what has been 
submitted online and there has been a lot of representation from 
older age groups and not much from under 40’s.  They need to 
target ethnic groups to ensure that their voice is heard and as part 
of engaging with schools are working with Lineker Primary. 
Participating schools have received A1 posters in which they can 
capture what they think about their journey to school and there is a 
scheme for pupils to interview older members of the family. Ali said 
that they would like to come back to the Panel at a later stage with 
evaluation and feedback.  Noted that there are no plans for the 
project as the community will devise the theme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

http://www.sustrans.org.uk/SouthportLN
http://www.sustrans.org.uk/SouthportLN


 

10 
 

 

 

Action 

Councillor Lappin said there was a lot of information which could be 
used for other areas and Councillor Thompson thought it was 
excellent.  Councillor Thompson mentioned that she used to work 
in Shakespeare Street and that it is a diverse community and asked 
whether they had the migrant community on board? Ali responded 
that they want to engage with this group.  Councillor Thompson said 
that she had a contact she can pass on. 

Nigel Bellamy said that Bobby Brennan, Sefton CVS has a lot of 
contact with the BAME community and shared his contact details. 

Councillor Lappin mentioned her background working in public 
transport and said that she is always very interested in this area, 
that this was a great item and thanked Lee for her report.  

 

 

 

Councillor 
Thompson 

 

 

 

 
Item 9 - Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and 
Consultation Activity –  Southport Walking and Cycling Routes 
& School Streets (Active Travel Tranche 2) 
 

• Item withdrawn 
 

 

 

 

10. Feedback and Evaluation Report – Southport Liveable 
Streets  

Lee Davies provided feedback on  the Southport Liveable Streets 
consultation.  

The Sefton Liveable Streets engagement went live in June 2020 
and ran until 31st December 2020.  The aim of the engagement 
was to capture the views of people living in Sefton about any 
problems and issues they are facing moving around on foot or by 
cycle in Sefton during the Covid pandemic. The platform was 
offered free of charge to all the Authorities in the City Region.  

Lee informed the Panel that detailed analysis had yet to be 
undertaken but wanted to provide a summary to the Panel of results 
to date. Sefton Liveable Streets had: 

• 4,550 visitors to the site 

• 2603 contributions (provided comments or an agreement) 

• 902 respondents (added, edited or agreed to comments) 

• 370 have registered to receive updates regarding the 
project 

Lee said that they will be looking at ways to engage people with 
plans going forward and this is very exciting. 

The main issues raised on Liveable Streets were: 

• Behaviour or road users 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



 

11 
 

 

 

Action 

• Speeding  

• Volume of traffic 

The top reasons why respondents said they felt this way was 
because it is dangerous, not cycle or pedestrian friendly or polluted. 

Top responses on how to make it better included: 

• Slowing down traffic 

• Safer roads 

• More places to cycle 

• Restricting cars – closing roads 

• Getting rid of overhanging bushes 

Lee said she was keen to come back to the Panel with the 
Feedback and Evaluation Report and to make best use of this 
information to inform policy, projects and capital schemes that the 
Strategic Transportation Planning and Investment (STPI) Team are 
currently progressing and throughout the department in all the work 
they do. 

Jayne Vincent commented that this is an opportunity to hear what 
people want to say about issues that affect them.  Jayne raised that 
it was important to give feedback – 370 people are on board to 
receive updates, but there are over 2000 who may not have given 
their details, but we need to give their feedback and to find a way 
to engage with them. 

Councillor Lappin thanked Lee for the report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lee Davies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement Activity – 
Shaping Care Together – moved to Item 8 

 

12. Any other Business 

There will be an extra Panel meeting on 12th February 2020 with 1 
agenda item. 

 

 
 

13. Date and time of next Meeting 
 
Friday 12th March 2021, 10.00 a.m. – remote meeting  

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5 
 

1 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 12th February 2021 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Community Adult Substance Use Treatment and Recovery 
Service. 

 
Report of:  Julie Tierney Julie.Tierney@sefton.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 

1.1 To receive information with regard to the plans being developed for 
commissioning Community Adult Substance Use Treatment and 
Recovery Service.     

 
2. Background 
 
   2.1  The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel   

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. The provision of Adult Substance Use Community Treatment and 

Recovery Service. 
 
 3.1 The purpose of this consultation is to: 
 

• Engage a range of stakeholders to inform effective delivery, 
development and commissioning of a substance use community 
treatment and recovery service for the adult residents. 

• Meet the Council’s standards regarding stakeholder engagement 
and consultation. 

• Ensure that the service which is being commissioned will meet 
the needs of residents of the Borough 

 
 

3.2      Community treatment and recovery is part of integrated drug and 
alcohol treatment services. Successful recovery from addiction and 
dependency on substances including alcohol requires sustained and 
co-ordinated care across services. Evidence points to effective and 
integrated treatment programmes as being central to enable 
individuals to sustain longer periods of abstinence. An integrated 
system increases efficiencies by reducing duplication between 
services, improves access to a range of services appropriate to the 
particular needs and requirements of service users, optimises 
treatment and recovery outcomes and improves the safety of 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

2 

 

individuals, their children and families. 
 
Community services typically provide a range of specialist treatment 
and recovery interventions including: 
 

•  Comprehensive assessment and health checks 

•  Blood borne virus testing and vaccination 

•  Opiate replacement treatment and medically assisted 

•  withdrawal programmes 

•  Community opiate and alcohol detoxification programmes 

•  Structured psychosocial interventions (including cognitive 

•  behaviour type interventions and motivational interviewing) 

•  Relapse prevention programmes 

•  Criminal Justice and Drug Intervention Programmes (DIP) 

•  Referral to residential detoxification and residential  

•  Rehabilitation programmes 

•  Needle and syringe programmes 

•  SMART recovery groups 

•  Alcohol support and extended Brief Intervention Groups 

•  Strengthening families 

•  Recovery support including assisted access to mutual aid 

•  groups (Narcotics Anonymous and Alcoholics Anonymous) 

•  Naloxone provision and overdose prevention advice 
 
The community Adult Substance Use Treatment and Recovery 
Service contract expires in March 2022.  

 
 

4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 The consultation aims to engage a range of participants 

including:- 

•     Existing service providers 

•  Service users 

•  Young People & Families Substance Use Service Manager 

•     GPs involved in the Treatment Pathway 

•     Pharmacist involved in the Treatment Pathway 
 
 

Methods of consultation will be through two mechanisms:- 

• Digital questionnaire sent to all Stakeholders as identified above. 
Paper questionnaires will be made available to service users 
attending centres. 

• Telephone Interviews will be carried out with service users who   
consent to participate. Telephone interviews will be semi -
structured to guide participants, but not restrict their responses. 
(See Attached Annex) 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

3 

 

         
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make.  
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Adult Substance Use Community Treatment and Recovery 
Service. 

 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when 
you place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: 
Consultation on Community Adult Substance Use Treatment and 

Recovery service 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Julie Tierney Contact 
no  

Click here to enter text. 

Designation Public Health Lead 
Substance Use & 
Sexual Health 

E-mail Julie.Tierney@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

x Protect the most vulnerable 

x Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

x Commission, broker and provide core services 

 Place – Leadership and Influencer 

 Drivers of change and reform 

 Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

x 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

5 

 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

x 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

 

  

 

Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Yes,  

 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

Internal: 
Anna Nygaard - Acting Consultant in Public Health   
Julie Tierney – Public Health Lead 
Clare Brewer – Business Intelligence  
David McCullough – Legal Department 
Stuart Bate     – Procurement 
Jayne Vincent – Consultation and Engagement 
 Elena Lloyd – Communications 

External: 

Current provider is Mersey Care, 

Local Pharmacist, GPs & Young People & Families Substance Use Service 

 

(Planned) start date (Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

15/02/21 01/03/21 No Budget Requirement. 

Background/Rationale 

 
The existing contract for community adult substance use treatment and recovery services   
expires on 31st March 2022. A paper is going to Cabinet on 4/2/21 to request permission to 
re-procure the service during 2021/22. 
 
Pending Cabinet decision. Public Health will be undertaking a commissioning process 
which involves Stakeholder Engagement across the current treatment pathways for 
substance use. This is not a new service, the findings from the consultation and 
engagement undertaken are intended to inform any modifications required to the service 
specification. As part of this process the Public Health Team feel that it would be extremely 
useful to consult with service users towards the end of February, in order to ascertain how 
we may improve the service provided, also to engage with other partners within the 
treatment pathway.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

6 

 

 
 
 
 

Aims & Objectives 

 
We aim to assess the perceptions of current service users surrounding their experience with 
this service. Also, to review key parts of the treatment pathway by engagement with delivery 
partners. From this we will ascertain if there are any positive improvements that can be 
made to the service prior to the re-procurement. We aim to:  

• To ensure that service users and service providers are involved and can inform 
modifications to the existing service specification 

• To ensure that any new service provision meets the needs of local residents and 
enhances their recovery.  

• To ensure that delivery partners are involved and can inform any modifications to 
the existing service specification. 

 

Target Audience 

Existing service providers - Mersey Care 

Service users - Drugs & Alcohol clients  

 o  Pharmacist involved in the Treatment pathway - Local Pharmaceutical Committee  

• GPs involved in the Treatment pathway  

•  

• Young People & Families Service Manager – We Are With You 

•  
 
 

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

The table below identifies some of the key methods that will be used to consult and 
engage.  
The community treatment and recovery substance misuse service is a specialised service 
which is designed for all adults in Sefton with problematic use of alcohol or drugs. 
Some of these clients could be considered vulnerable due to the nature of their needs 
and circumstances. Therefore, it is important that participation is on a voluntary basis and 
thought is given to how this is managed. Given the current COVID 19 circumstances. The 
majority (90%) of service users are not attending services. Contact in the main is virtual 
and by telephone. The small numbers attending have been risk assessed and are those 
who are most clinically at risk and have greatest vulnerable. It will not be possible to hold 
focus groups at the service in the community. 
 
In discussion with the service the proposed methodology will be: 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

7 

 

Telephone interviews with service users who have given permission to be contacted via 
their key worker. The plan is to carryout 20 such interviews, although this will be subject to 
service users agreeing to participate. 
 
Service user questionnaires completed by those attending services or can be contacted 
electronically by the service. 
 
Service Provider staff – Questionnaire 
Pharmacist – Questionnaire 
GPs – Questionnaire 
Young People & Family Service Manager – Telephone Interview. 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

 

 

 

Key Message Audience Method 

To gather information about 
the service to inform the 
development and delivery of 
the service in the future. 

Service Users In order to recruit service 
user participants staff at the 
service will provide details 
regarding the purpose of 
the consultation and ask if 
they are agreeable to 
participating in a brief 
telephone interview. 

 Service Provider Staff An E survey will be 
distributed to staff via the 
Operational Manager to be 
returned to the council via a 
link. 

 Pharmacists An E survey will be 
distributed via the LPC to 
be returned via a council 
link 

 GPs An E survey will be 
distributed to GPs to be 
returned via a council link. 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

Due to COVID 19 services users are not attending community service venues but are 
receiving support remotely.  Similarly, this is also the case with other partners.  
The commissioners will adopt methods for stakeholders to engage with the 
consultation which address these barriers by utilising communication methods will include; 
telephone interviews & electronic surveys. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

8 

 

 

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

This consultation will not be collecting any personal data. Where stakeholders (including 
service users) take part in workshops/events, the feedback will be anonymised. 

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

The findings from the consultations with service users will be collated into a report and 
used to inform the service specification. 

 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

 Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited 
opportunity for them to be involved) 

X Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available 
in advance for them to 
consider) 

Yes . 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

No  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 

No  

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5 
 

9 

 

target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your consultation) 

yes 
Service data from providers will 
inform the consultation and the modification of 
the service specification. 

 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 
Signature of Project Lead: J Tierney Date: 25/1/21 
 
Manager Approval: Anna Nygaard 
 Date: 25/1/21 

 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a 

1 
 

APPENDIX 1 - CONSULTATION PLAN -ADULT COMMUNITY SUBSTANCE USE TREATMENT 

&RECOVERY SERVICE 

 

STAKEHOLDER GROUP METHODOLOGY DOCUMENT 

Service Users Telephone Interviews  
Appendix 2 – Community 
Service Telephone Interviews 
(draft) 
 

Service Users Questionnaire Appendix 3 – Service User 
Survey questions 
 

Service Provider staff Questionnaire Appendix 4 – Service Provider 
staff survey questions 
 

Pharmacist  Questionnaire Appendix 5 – Pharmacists 
Survey questions 

GPS Questionnaire Appendix 6 – GP survey 
questions 
 

YP & Families Service Manager Telephone Interview Open discussion with We are 
With You Service re: 
Referral pathway 
Feedback from their clients 
Stigma 
What works well? 
What can be improved? 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b 

1 
 

Adult Community Substance Use Treatment & Recovery Service Procurement 2021 

 

Telephone Interview Guide 

Introduction 

Thank you for agreeing to take part in this telephone call today. Any views or comments that you choose to share about your 

experience in the service will be anonymous and will help to inform improvements in this service for the future.  

 

Topic – Service Access  
 

Prompts Notes 

1a. How did you arrive into service? 
 

 
 

 
 
1b. When first spoken to about accessing the 
service, either by somebody referring you or 
the person you spoke to on the phone or front 
desk – What did you think? 
 
1c. Do you feel there are any barriers that put 
people off being referred to the Sefton 
Community Adult Substance Use Treatment & 
Recovery Service? 
 
 
 
 

GP referral 
Self-referral (called) 
Criminal Justice system 
Other Health professional 
referral 
Other  
 

was the information clear and 
make you feel like it would be 
something that could help you? 

 
 

Location of service? 
Stigma? 
Opening Times? 

 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5b 

2 
 

 
 
 
 

Topic – Assessment and admission 
 

Prompts Notes 

1. Q2a. What was your experience of your 

first appointment and the assessment like?  

 
 
 
 
 

Did you have to wait longer than 
you expected to be assessed? 
 
In your opinion, do the processes 
and support in place at the 
beginning of attending the service 
support you well? 
 
Could it have been improved?  

 

Topic – Treatment and care  
 

Notes 

3a. Does the treatment and support you 
receive meet with your needs and 
requirements? 
 
3b. What do you feel currently works well in 
the service you have accessed? 
 
3c. Would you change anything about the 
service, and the way it is delivered?  
 
 
 
 

Relationship with key worker? 
 
Prescription? 
 
Access to other services & 
interventions 
 
Support around Recovery 
 
Are staff generally available to 
offer support when you need it? 
 
Are there any gap’s things you feel 
are missing for supporting your 
treatment & recovery? 

 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5b 

3 
 

 
 
 
 

Topic – Activities and Interventions Prompts Notes 

4a. Are there sufficient interventions/ 
activities available to support your recovery? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4b. In what ways could activities and 
interventions be improved? 
 

Is there support to help you 
access a regular programme of 
activities & interventions in the Life 
Rooms or community? 
 
Do you find the 
interventions/activities 
interventions helpful? 
 
Would you like to have access to 
other things in the Life Rooms? 
 
 

 

Topic – Awareness of the Service Offer  Notes 

5a. How do you feel the service could 
encourage more people who need support to 
attend?  
 
 

Promotion in the community  
How and where this could be 
done? 
 
 

 

Topic – Other Information   

6a. Is there any other information that you 
would like to share with us to improve the 
service? 

Observations 
 
Experience of other elements of 
the Treatment pathway? 
  

 

 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5c 

1 
 

Appendix 3 - Service Users - Survey sample questions (Draft) 

1. How did arrive into the service? 

GP referral 

Self-referral (called or visited one of the sites) 

Criminal Justice system 

Other Health professional referral 

Other, please tell us: 

 

2. When first spoken about accessing the service, either by somebody referring you 

or the person you spoke to on the phone or front desk - was the information 

clear and did you feel like it would be something that could help you? 

Yes 

No 

Comments on the first contact 

3. Do you think the processes and support in place at the beginning of attending the 

service supported you well? 

Yes 

No 

Comments on the support at the beginning 

4. What do you feel currently works well in the service you have accessed? 

Please detail. 

 

5. Would you change anything about the service, and the way it is delivered? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any changes to the service  

 

6. Do you feel there are any barriers that put people off being referred to the  

Community Substance Use Treatment & Recovery Service? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any barriers  

 

 

7. Do you feel there is a social stigma (discrimination and disapproval) to accessing 

substance use support in Sefton?  

Yes 

No 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5c 

2 
 

Please share your thoughts on reducing social stigma  

 

8. How do you feel the service could be better promoted in the community? 

Please detail  

 

 

9. Currently, the service operates from two sites – Southport town centre and 

Bootle. We would be keen to hear your thoughts on the pros and cons of these 

locations? 

Please detail  

 

10. Please detail any further feedback you would like to share with us 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5d 

1 
 

Appendix 4 - Service Provider Staff - Survey sample questions (Draft) 

 

1. What do you feel currently works well in the service? 

Please detail...  

 

2. Would you change anything about the service, and the way it is delivered?  

Yes 

No 

Please detail any changes  

 

3. Are there any gap’s you feel is missing for supporting substance misuse 

treatment & recovery? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any gaps  

 

 

4. Do you feel there are any barriers that put people off being referred to the Sefton 

Community Substance Use Treatment & Recovery Service? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any barriers  

 

 

5. Do you feel there is any social stigma to accessing substance misuse support in 

Sefton? We are keen to hear your thoughts around any ways in which we can 

reduce stigma and make the sites and services appealing to our residents 

Yes 

No 

Please share your thoughts on how social stigma can be reduced.  

 

6. How do you feel we could better promote of the service in the community to 

encourage self-referrals and how could this be done? 

Please detail  

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5d 

2 
 

 

 

7. Currently, the service operates from two sites – Southport town centre and 

Bootle. We would be keen to hear your thoughts on the pros and cons of these 

locations? 

Please detail  

 

8. Please detail any further feedback you would like to share with us  

 

 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5e 

1 
 

Appendix 5 - Pharmacy Survey sample questions (Draft) 

1. Are you aware of the Sefton Community Substance Use Treatment & Recovery 

service (Current provider is Mersey Care – Ambition Sefton)? 

 

Yes  

No  

 

2. If yes, have you referred patients into this service? 

 

Yes  

No  

 

3. Pharmacies in Sefton currently offer two substance use support services. Which 

of these do you currently provide? 

 

Needle exchange 

Supervised Consumption 

None 

 

4. Do you feel that the links between pharmacies and Sefton Community Substance 

Use Treatment & Recovery Service could be improved? If so, how? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any ways you feel links could be improved  

 

 

5. Do you feel there is any gap’s in pharmacy provision that could better support 

substance use service users 

Yes 

No 

Please detail  

 

 

6. Do you feel there are any barriers that put people off being referred to the 

Service? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any barriers  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5e 

2 
 

7. Currently, the service operates from two sites – Southport town centre and 

Bootle. Have you received any feedback on pro’s and con’s of these locations? 

Yes 

No 

Please include any detail  

 

8. Please detail any further feedback you would like to share with us 

 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5f 

1 
 

Appendix 6 - GP Survey sample questions (Draft) 

1. Are you aware of the Sefton Substance Use Treatment & Recovery service 

(Current provider Mersey Care – Ambition Sefton)? 

 

Yes – to question 2 

No – to question 4 

 

2. If yes, have you referred patients into this service? 

 

Yes – to question 3 

No – to question 4 

  

3. How would you rate the referral process and feedback 

Numbers 1-10 (1 being poor, 10 being excellent) 

Box for comments on referral process and feedback 

 

4. From patient and professional feedback on a scale of 1-10 how would you rate 

the quality of the service? 

Numbers 1-10 (1 being poor, 10 being excellent) 

Box for comments on quality of service 

 

5. Would you change anything about the service, and the way it is delivered?  

Yes 

No 

Comments on any changes 

 

6. Do you feel there are any barriers that put people off being referred to the 

Service? 

Yes 

No 

Please detail any barriers 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Agenda Item 5f 

2 
 

7. Currently, the service operates from two sites – Southport town centre, and 

Bootle. Have you received any feedback on pro’s and con’s of these locations? 

Yes 

No 

Please include any detail 

 

8. Are you involved with Share Care of patients with Ambition Sefton 

Yes 

No 

 

9.  If, yes how well does this work & are there areas that can be improved? Box for 

comments 

 

Finally are there any other comments you would like to share with us ? Box for 

comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Friday 15th January 2021
	5 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Community Adult Substance Use Treatment and Recovery Service
	Item 5a Appendix 1 - Community Substance Use Service CONSULTATION PLAN
	Item 5b Appendix 2 - Service user telephone interview
	Item 5c Appendix 3 - Service user Survey questions
	Item 5d Appendix 4 - Service Provider staff survey questions
	Item 5e Appendix 5 - Pharmacy survey questions
	Item 5f Appendix 6 - GP survey questions


